
1

Contact Officer:
Sharon Thomas 01352 702324
sharon.b.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

To: Cllr Clive Carver (Chairman)

Councillors: Haydn Bateman, Bob Connah, Paul Cunningham, Patrick Heesom, 
Andrew Holgate, Dave Hughes, Paul Johnson, Richard Jones, Mike Lowe, 
Hilary McGuill, Michelle Perfect, Vicky Perfect and Arnold Woolley
(+ 1 Labour vacancy)

8 December 2017

Dear Councillor

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee which will be held at 10.00 am on Thursday, 14th December, 2017 in the 
Delyn Committee Room, County Hall, Mold CH7 6NA to consider the following items

A G E N D A

1 APOLOGIES 
Purpose: To receive any apologies.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING 
DECLARATIONS) 
Purpose: To receive any Declarations and advise Members accordingly.

3 MINUTES (Pages 3 - 12)
Purpose: To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting on 

16 November 2017.
4 FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND - ANNUAL REPORT 

(Pages 13 - 44)

Report of Chief Executive, Corporate Finance Manager - Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Management and Assets, Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Finance

Purpose: Colin Evans from the Community Foundation to present the 
Annual progress report.

Public Document Pack



2

5 WORKFORCE INFORMATION REPORT – QUARTER 2 (Pages 45 - 78)

Report of Senior Manager, Human Resources & Organisational Development 
- Cabinet Member for Corporate Management and Assets

Purpose: To consider the Workforce Information Report for Quarter 2 of 
2017/18.

6 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2017/18 (MONTH 7) (Pages 79 - 104)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager - Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Finance

Purpose: The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the 
Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 7).

7 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 105 - 110)

Report of Democratic Services Manager - 

Purpose: To consider the Forward Work Programme of the Corporate 
Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

Yours sincerely

Robert Robins
Democratic Services Manager



CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
16 NOVEMBER 2017

Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee of Flintshire County Council held in the Delyn Committee Room, 
County Hall, Mold on Thursday, 16 November 2017

PRESENT: Councillor Clive Carver (Chairman)
Councillors: Haydn Bateman, Bob Connah, Paul Cunningham, 
Patrick Heesom, Andrew Holgate, Dave Hughes, Paul Johnson, 
Richard Jones, Mike Lowe, Michelle Perfect, Vicky Perfect and Arnold Woolley

APOLOGY: Councillor Aaron Shotton, Leader & Cabinet Member for Finance

CONTRIBUTORS: Chief Executive

Representatives of North Wales Fire & Rescue Authority for minute number 42
Dawn Docx, Deputy Chief Fire Officer
Councillors Meirick Lloyd Davies and Peter Lewis, Chair and Vice-Chair of the 
Authority

Corporate Business & Communications Executive Officer - for minute numbers 
38-43
Chief Officer, Governance - for minute number 43
Corporate Finance Manager - for minute number 44

IN ATTENDANCE: Democratic Services Manager and Democratic Services 
Officer

38. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None were received.

39. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of 19 October 2017 were submitted.

As a point of accuracy on minute number 30, Financial Forecast and 
Stage One of the Budget 2018/19, it was noted that there had been a 0.9% 
reduction in funding for the Council within the Provisional Local Government 
Settlement.

The Chief Executive agreed to speak to Councillor Jones outside the 
meeting about a specific case of ‘cuckooing’ following discussion on this topic 
at the September meeting.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



RESOLVED:

That subject to the amendment, the minutes be approved as a correct record 
and signed by the Chairman.

40. VARIATION IN ORDER OF AGENDA

It was agreed that the following item should be brought forward to enable 
the Deputy Chief Fire Officer to present the North Wales Fire & Rescue 
Authority Update.

41. FLINTSHIRE PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD REVIEW AND WELL-BEING 
PLAN DEVELOPMENT

The Chief Executive introduced an overview of the work of the Flintshire 
Public Services Board (PSB) and development of the Well-being Plan.

The Corporate Business & Communications Executive Officer circulated 
information on the five themes of the Well-being Plan which had been selected 
as those where the PSB could add most value.  Extensive consultation on the 
outline Plan was shortly due to commence leading to adoption of the final 
version by the Council in the New Year.

Councillor Jones raised concerns that the Betsi Cadwaladr University 
Health Board (BCUHB) website link referred to specific areas of the county 
which may infer that other areas would not benefit from the Plan.  The Chief 
Executive gave assurance that the themes supported the whole County and 
cited Single Point of Access under ‘Well-being and Independent Living’ as an 
example.  The Corporate Business & Communications Executive Officer 
agreed to raise the matter at the forthcoming Voluntary Sector Compact 
meeting to ensure that the aims of the Plan were not being mis-represented on 
the BCUHB website.

In response to a query from Councillor Johnson, the Chief Executive said 
that it was yet not possible to evaluate the impact of Brexit and other issues 
outside the Council’s control.  Actions under each theme would be tracked 
against specific targets which had been set.  He reminded Members of the 
forthcoming workshop on the North Wales Economic Growth Deal and said that 
the regional approach would strengthen the Council’s position on future funding 
access and powers.  Reference to Holway on the piloting of new ways of 
working in communities under ‘Resilient Communities’ reflected the Community 
Asset Transfers in the area.  Officers agreed to change this to Holywell for 
consistency with the other towns mentioned.

Councillor Woolley commented on the mix of references to ‘priorities’ 
and ‘themes’ which could confuse readers.  It was explained that priorities 
applied to the former Local Service Board and that steps had been taken to 
simplify language under the five themes of the new Plan.

Page 4



Councillor Heesom highlighted the importance of ensuring equitable 
distribution of resources across the county and asked that a response to the 
point raised by Councillor Jones be shared.  He also requested that the agenda 
for the Compact meeting be shared with the Committee.  In response to 
comments about the contributions of the PSB, the Chief Executive explained 
that the PSB was not a formal decision-making body and he illustrated the fit 
between the Well-being Plan and the Council Plan.  He also provided details of 
the PSB membership which had been extended beyond the statutory partners.

During discussion on the report’s recommendations, the Democratic 
Services Manager was asked to summarise the comments and points which 
had been raised.  These were supported by the Committee as resolutions.

RESOLVED:

That the Committee has confidence that steps are in place to have a plan ready 
by the statutory deadline, subject to:

 Substituting ‘Holywell’ for the reference ‘Holway’;
 That the references on the Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board 

(BCUHB) website be challenged at Monday’s Compact meeting to give 
Members assurance that BCUHB acknowledges the benefits to the 
whole county, with a report back in due course;

 The provision of the papers for the forthcoming Compact meeting are 
made available to Members, as requested;

 Thanking the Chief Executive for his explanation and assurance that the 
fit between the Council Plan and Well-being Plan does not pose any risk 
to the Council’s decision-making.

42. NORTH WALES FIRE & RESCUE AUTHORITY UPDATE

The Chief Executive welcomed Councillors Meirick Lloyd Davies and 
Peter Lewis (Chair and Vice-Chair) and Dawn Docx (Deputy Chief Fire Officer) 
of the North Wales Fire & Rescue Authority (NWF&RA) to the meeting.

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer gave a presentation on the future of the 
Fire & Rescue service covering the following topics:

 Community Safety
 Special Service Calls
 Response and Business Fire Safety
 How much does it cost to run?
 Capital Budget
 Reserves 2017/18
 Budget Pressures
 A Steady Strategy

The Chief Executive said that the presentation reflected budget 
pressures which reconciled with those of the Council.

Page 5



Councillor Cunningham asked about the possibility of introducing 
charges to provide much-needed investment in services.  The Deputy Chief 
Fire Officer explained that charges for incidental special services did not 
generate significant income and that there were difficulties in charging for 
provision of safety advice due to the conflict of interest.

Following comments by Councillor Jones, it was explained that due to 
the financial position of the NWF&RA, decisions had been made to reduce or 
stop certain services - such as large animal rescue - which were not mandatory, 
taking into consideration the risk levels involved.

During discussion, it was explained that the budget pressures faced by 
the NWF&RA had reached a position where a balanced discussion was needed 
to identify further efficiencies.  The options for consideration were to request an 
increased levy from councils or to reduce provision in the region’s station cover.

Councillor Jones said that if residents were made aware of the prospect 
of further cuts, they may be willing to pay an additional £3 per year per 
household to protect services.  The Chief Executive advised that the NWF&RA 
levy was paid from the Council Tax and that any increase in the levy would be 
a cost pressure upon the Council.  He said that a recommended further 
increase to the 2017/18 Council Tax to accommodate the higher levy for the 
NWR&RA had been dismissed by Members, resulting in a budget pressure for 
the Council.  Councillor Jones felt that residents may support the additional levy 
if it was ring-fenced within the Council Tax amount.

The Chairman suggested that as legislation did not permit this, a note 
could be included with Council Tax bills to show the NWF&RA levy.

The Chief Executive said that Members may wish to make a 
recommendation to give creative consideration to the literature produced to put 
with the Council Tax bill.  He suggested a further recommendation for Cabinet 
and Council to give due consideration to any suggested increase in the levy 
charge.  Councillor Peter Lewis, the Vice-Chair of the NWF&RA, requested that 
the Council give an early steer on its response.

The recommendations were supported by the Committee, along with the 
suggestion to make representations on changes to legislation and Councillor 
Woolley’s proposal that the report be noted for its clarity and brevity.

As this was her last meeting before taking up a new role in Greater 
Manchester, the Chairman thanked the Deputy Chief Fire Officer for her 
presentation and took the opportunity to wish her well on behalf of the 
Committee.

RESOLVED:

(a) That the representatives of the North Wales Fire & Rescue Authority be 
thanked for their attendance and contribution to the meeting;

Page 6



(b) That the report be noted and its clarity and brevity approved;

(c) That changes to the material included within Council Tax bills, to explain 
North Wales Fire & Rescue Authority funding to Council Tax payers, be 
investigated;

(d) That a case for necessary changes to national legislation be pursued to 
provide greater transparency in Fire & Rescue Authority funding;

(e) That both Cabinet and the County Council be made aware that the 
Committee has given due consideration of the Fire & Rescue Authority 
levy charge and the need for an increase; and

(f) That the Flintshire representatives on the Fire & Rescue Authority be 
made aware at an early stage of the Council’s position on an increase to 
North Wales Fire & Rescue Authority funding.

43. COUNCIL PLAN 2017/18 - MID YEAR MONITORING

The Chief Executive presented the mid-year progress report on the 
Council Plan for 2017-23 which had been reviewed and refreshed to reflect the 
Council’s key priorities for the five year term of the new administration.

The Corporate Business & Communications Executive Officer gave an 
overview of the three performance indicators with a red risk status.

The Chief Executive advised that the figure for the completion of 
appraisals was provisional and was expected to improve once manual 
adjustments had been made to the iTrent system.  A full update would be 
provided in the annual report scheduled for December or January.

Councillor Woolley said that the completion of appraisals was a long-
standing area of concern and that managers/supervisors should be held 
accountable for any failure to give their employees an opportunity for a 
meaningful two-way dialogue.  The Chief Executive gave assurance of the 
commitment to work towards the 100% target noting there were some 
exceptions such as individuals at risk of redundancy or on maternity leave.  He 
said that appraisals were based on a good model and that managers were 
encouraged to coach employees throughout the year, thereby reducing the 
significance of an annual appraisal.

Following comments from the Chairman, the Chief Executive advised 
that exceptions for appraisals would be shown in the annual report as both 
percentages and figures.

On the percentage of goods procured through the National Procurement 
Service, the Chief Officer (Governance) explained that a range of frameworks 
were assessed to establish value for money and that this was only achieved 
through the NPS in a low number of contracts.

Page 7



The percentage of employees completing stress-related programmes 
was lower than anticipated but was expected to improve during the year.  The 
programme had only recently been introduced and whilst sickness absence 
rates were improving, stress related absences remained an area of focus.

Councillor Jones said that as part of the Committee’s role in overseeing 
the Council Plan in its entirety, it should receive exceptions reported to all 
Overview & Scrutiny committees at the mid-year and end of year stages.  He 
also commented on missing wording in the report and reference to the former 
Improvement Plan.

Councillor Johnson proposed that officers look at the approach taken by 
the Centre for Local Economic Strategy in Preston which had been successful 
in supporting small businesses to help improve the local economy.

The Chief Officer (Governance) said that identifying local provision was 
a key part of contract arrangements and that a range of support was available 
to help local businesses maximise tendering opportunities.

Councillor Jones said that attempts to boost local businesses were 
hampered by the introduction of car parking charges, the registration charge for 
the Council’s supplier network and high costs for business waste collection by 
private companies.

With regard to the supplier network system, the Chief Officer pointed out 
the advantages in streamlining processes and the range of exceptions available 
to ensure small businesses were not affected.

The points raised by Members were summarised by the Democratic 
Services Manager and agreed by the Committee.

RESOLVED:

(a) That having considered that Council Plan 2017/18 mid-year monitoring 
report, the Committee would like to impress upon the Cabinet the need 
for a higher percentage of employees receiving appraisals 
(notwithstanding the Appraisals update report which the Committee is to 
receive in due course);

(b) That recognising the wide terms of reference of the Committee, it should 
receive the full Council Plan performance monitoring reports at the six 
and twelve month intervals; and

(c) That the Procurement team be asked to look at the work done on local 
spending in Preston by the Centre for Local Economic Strategy.

Page 8



44. REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2017/18 (MONTH 6) AND CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME MONITORING (MONTH 6)

The Finance Manager introduced a report on the revenue budget 
monitoring position for 2017/18 as at Month 6 for the Council Fund and Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) and Capital Programme, prior to consideration by 
Cabinet.

Revenue Budget Monitoring

On the Council Fund, the net in-year position was forecast to be £1.147m 
higher than budget, which was an increase of £0.201m from Month 5.  On 
projected variances for Social Services, there was positive movement due to 
increased client contributions for residential placements and increased 
Continuing Health Care funding.  An increase in costs for Out of County 
placements had arisen mainly due to two specific cases.  It was estimated that 
93% of planned efficiencies would be achieved by year end which was slightly 
below the Medium Term Financial Strategy target.  On the monitoring of risks, 
some of the emerging in-year risks would need to be assessed for recurring 
impacts on the 2018/19 budget.

On the HRA, in-year spend was projected to be £0.035m lower than 
budget, leaving a year end balance of £1.081m which was above the 
recommended minimum level.

In response to queries raised by Councillor Jones, officers advised that 
the closure of the public convenience in Mold had been discussed by the town 
council and the cost would not continue beyond this year.  On school delegated 
budgets, the Corporate Finance Manager explained that there were no 
variances as these were fixed amounts passported to schools through the 
formula.  He noted the request for more clarity on under and overspend in the 
explanations for projected variances and said that analysis on movements was 
detailed in the appendices.  He added that any specific queries on these figures 
be referred for officers to look into.  Clarification was also given on variances 
for the Council’s share of social care funding from Welsh Government and the 
Household Recycling Centres.  The projected underspend for the Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme was referred to and was due to reduced client demand.  It 
was agreed that this would be subject to further discussion including the 
forthcoming Member workshop.

On the format of the report, Councillor Jones requested that officers look 
into whether the orientation of appendices could be displayed to be consistent 
with the reports.

Capital Programme

A table showing changes to the programme during 2017/18 indicated a 
revised budget of £58.674m.  Changes during the period were summarised, the 
most significant being the commencement of the street lighting programme 

Page 9



funded through an interest-free Salix loan.  A total of £0.497m recommended 
for carry forward into 2018/19 was summarised in Table 4.

Paragraph 1.20 reported the overall position on the availability of funding 
including the level of capital receipts and impact of the Provisional Settlement.  
Taking all areas into account, there was a £0.567m shortfall in the total 
programme although the 2017/18 budget was fully funded.

RESOLVED:

(a) That the Committee notes the Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 
(Month 6) report and confirms on this occasion that the issues which it 
wishes to have brought to the Cabinet’s attention are:

 the need for clarity of language on under and overspending so 
that such issues are readily understood;

 the underspend on the Council Tax Reduction scheme be 
investigated and budget allocation be remodelled if necessary.

(b) That the Committee notes the Capital Programme Monitoring 2017/18 
Month 6 report and confirms on this occasion that there are no issues 
which it wishes to have brought to the Cabinet’s attention.

45. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Democratic Services Manager presented the Forward Work 
Programme for consideration and confirmed that the appraisals report would 
be scheduled for December or January.  As requested by the Constitution & 
Democratic Services Committee, Members’ views were sought on their 
preferred meeting pattern for this Committee.

Councillor Cunningham expressed a preference for the meetings to 
remain on a Thursday morning, which was seconded by Councillor Johnson.  
On being put to the vote, this option was agreed.

Councillor Michelle Perfect spoke in support of meetings starting at 
5.30pm or 6pm to allow Members in full-time employment the opportunity to 
attend.  Although this was not endorsed by other Members, it was agreed that 
all individual views should be reflected in the consultation response.

The Chairman supported the continuation of current arrangements but 
pointed out the advantages of an earlier starting time in respect of car parking 
availability.

A reminder was given of the forthcoming budget workshop and 
subsequent Council meeting on 12 December.  Councillor Jones indicated that 
he was unavailable for the special meeting on 6 December to consider the 
Stage 2 budget proposals and remarked that an evening slot could have 
accommodated more Members.  Apologies for the meeting were also submitted 
by Councillor Woolley.  The Democratic Services Manager referred to other 
meetings attended by Members which were generally held in the evenings.

Page 10



RESOLVED:

(a) That the Forward Work Programme as submitted, be approved with 
amendments;

(b) That the special meeting on 6 December 2017 be noted;

(c) That an update report on appraisals be made to the December or 
January meetings;

(d) That the Democratic Services Manager, in consultation with the 
Chairman, be authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme between 
meetings, should this be necessary; and

(e) That the Committee would prefer to continue to meet at 10am on 
Thursdays, but that Councillor Michelle Perfect’s comments about 
evening meetings being more suitable to accommodate Members in full-
time employment be included in the report back to the Constitution & 
Democratic Services Committee.

46. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the press or public in attendance.

(The meeting started at 10am and ended at 12.25pm)

…………………………
Chairman

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



CORPORATE RESOURCE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Thursday 14th December 2017 

Report Subject Flintshire Community Endowment Fund – Annual Report

Cabinet Member Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance & 
Cabinet Member for Corporate Management and Assets

Report Author Chief Executive & Corporate Finance Manager

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Flintshire Community Endowment Fund (the Fund) was established in 
September 2013 following Cabinet approval to transfer approximately £200k of 16 
educational trust funds which were moribund or ineffective to the Community 
Foundation in Wales.

The Fund has since been managed and invested in by the Community Foundation 
in Wales and local grants have been awarded by the grants panel. This report   
provides an update on the progress and performance of the Fund since it was last 
reported in May 2016.

A presentation on the work of the Fund will be provided to the Corporate Resources 
Overview and Scrutiny committee at its December meeting.

The report considers the proposal received from the Community Foundation in 
Wales to manage, administer and invest the Clwyd Tri-partite Welsh Church Act 
Fund (Clwyd WCAF) which is currently administered by the Council on behalf of 
Flintshire, Denbighshire and Wrexham Councils. 

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Members continue to endorse the work of the Community Foundation in
Wales and the award of local grants as part of the Flintshire Community 
Endowment Fund.

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



2 Members approve the transfer of the management and the administration of 
the Clwyd Tri-partite Welsh Church Act Fund for Flintshire, Denbighshire 
and Wrexham to the Community Foundation for Wales from 1st April 2018.

3 Members approve the transfer of the management and the administration of 
Flintshire grants awarded from the Welsh Church Act Fund to be combined 
with the process already in place for the Flintshire Community Endowment 
Fund.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND

1.01 The Fund has been managed by the Community Foundation in Wales since 
2013.  A report on the Fund’s progress and performance is provided regularly 
by a representative from the Community Foundation in Wales.  The latest 
report is attached at Appendix 1. 

1.02 The financial performance of the Fund continues to be strong with the value 
of the endowment having grown by 17% from £178,975 in 2013 to £209,652 
as at 30th September 2017.

1.03 Grants totalling £34,082 have been awarded since 2013.  A grant panel was 
held in March 2017 and grants were awarded to 4 groups and 17 individuals 
totalling £10,335. Further information about these awards will be provided as 
part of the presentation to the Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny 
committee.

Clwyd Tri-partite Welsh Church Act Fund (Clwyd WCAF)

1.04 The Welsh Church Act Fund is a charitable Trust Fund governed by the Welsh 
Church Act 1914.  The Act separated and dis-established the Welsh part of 
the Church of England.  The Welsh Church Act Trust was established from 
the proceeds and assets, which were distributed evenly amongst the former 
County Councils in Wales and further divided between the Unitary Authorities 
with their establishment in 1996.  All authorities are required to draw up an 
appropriate scheme (of governance), under section 19 of the Act.  Flintshire’s 
scheme was approved by the Secretary of State for Wales in April 1999.  
 

1.05 The Clwyd WCAF is administered by the Council on a lead authority basis for 
Flintshire, Denbighshire County Council and Wrexham County Borough 
Council.  It is referred to as the tri-partite scheme.  The trustee of the Clwyd 
WCAF is the Responsible Finance Officer for Flintshire County Council, 
currently the Corporate Finance Manager.    

1.06 Responsibilities of the trustee include; the administration and management of 
the fund, investing funds, determining the distribution of net income generated 
to the 3 Councils, preparing annual accounts and submitting annual returns 
as necessary to the Charity Commission.   

Page 14



1.07 The Community Foundation in Wales has submitted a proposal to the Council 
to take over the management and administration of the Clwyd WCAF, though 
the Trusteeship would remain with the Council.  Subject to Member approval 
a detailed agreement would be put in place for the Foundation to manage the 
fund on the Trustees behalf, which would cover roles, responsibilities and 
reporting requirements.  

1.08 Both Denbighshire and Wrexham Councils have undertaken a similar 
exercise to that of Flintshire to transfer ineffective and moribund educational 
trust funds to the Community Foundation in Wales. The Foundation reports 
similar successes in terms of growing the endowment and grant making to 
that of Flintshire.

The proposal has been shared with both Denbighshire and Wrexham 
Councils who have no objection to transferring the management and 
administration of the Clwyd WCAF to the Foundation. 
 

1.09 The Foundation have been managing and administering the Welsh Church 
Act for Powys Council since 2009 with the endowment growing by 26% over 
the period 2009 to 2016.

1.10 The Foundation have approached the Charity Commission for an ‘in principle’ 
view on the proposal to transfer.  Having reviewed the scheme’s governing 
documents the commission confirmed that ‘subject to the Trustee having no 
concerns on the Foundation’s suitability to manage the Fund (Clwyd WCAF) 
the Trustee has the power to delegate the management of the Fund (Clwyd 
WCAF) to the Foundation’.  

Investment Strategy

1.11 The objective of current investment strategy, in place since 2003, in the short 
term is to generate annual income for grants, without jeopardising the longer 
term objectives of protecting the capital value against inflation, whilst keeping 
administration costs to a minimum. 
£20,000 a year has been allocated for grants which is shared between the 3 
Councils on population basis.
Investments have been made by Blackrock Investment Managers on the 
Trustees behalf in equal amounts of equities (shares), fixed interest deposits, 
and money market funds. 
 

1.12 During the past six financial years the performance of the fund has been 
mixed due to the negative impact of investing in a low interest rate 
environment, and needing to maintain the amounts awarded in grants.  The 
opening balance of the fund at 1st April 2011 was £577,867 with a closing 
balance of £569,554 on 31st March 2017, a slight reduction of £8,313 or 
1.44%.

Grants awarded total £149,000, at £20,000 per year with an additional 
£29,000 being made available in 2013/14 due to a high return on investments.
The annual return on investments generated averages circa 2% over the six 
year period.  Fees charged by the Council to cover administration costs were 
£3,400 per annum an average of 0.6% of the opening balance. 

1.13 The Foundation’s Investment Strategy is attached at Appendix 2 which is 
Page 15



overseen by its Finance, Risk and Investment Committee.
The strategy is: ‘To offer a 'Fund Holder' grant-making capability that 
increases with inflation whilst maintaining the real value of both its capital and 
income for charitable purposes, over an economic cycle, through a diversified 
portfolio with a moderate risk profile.’
This is very similar to the objectives of the current investment strategy.

1.14 During the 5 year period 1st April 2011 to 31st March 2016 the Foundation has 
achieved average annual returns of 6.5% however, the Foundation point out 
that past performance is no guarantee of future returns.
The fee for managing the endowment is 1.25%.

For illustrative purposes only an opening balance of £510,000 transferred to 
the Foundation therefore could potentially have given investment income of 
£33,150, of which £20,000 would be used to pay grants and £6,789 in fees, 
leaving a closing balance of £516,361 on the Clwyd WCAF, a £6,361 increase 
or 1.25%.   

1.15 The Foundation are seeking a nominal fee of 0.5% of the value of the total 
assets at the time of transfer, to cover the direct costs involved in agreeing 
and effecting the transfer of responsibilities pertaining to the management 
and administration of the Scheme.

Flintshire Welsh Church Act Scheme – Grant Awarding Process

1.16 The current grant awards are agreed jointly between representatives from the 
Council and Flintshire Local Voluntary Council.  The awards are then 
authorised through the Delegated Powers process.  It is proposed that future 
Welsh Church Act Fund awards are integrated with those of the Flintshire 
Community Endowment Fund.  This will streamline the process and maintain 
involvement from the Flintshire Local Voluntary Sector.  An annual report will 
be provided on the grants awarded as part of the Community Endowment 
report. 

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 The transfer of the management and administration of the Clwyd WACF to 
the Foundation will result in a loss of income to the Council of £3,400 per 
annum, however this will free up officer time involved in managing and 
administering the Clwyd WCAF.
 

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 A report along with a presentation from representatives of the Community 
Foundation in Wales will be made to Corporate Resources Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on December 14th

3.02 The proposal has been shared with both Denbighshire and Wrexham 
Councils who have no objection to transferring the management and 
administration of the Clwyd WCAF to the Foundation.  

Page 16



4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 Financial risks to the Fund and the Clwyd WCAF include; reduced rates of 
interest being earnt on the investment portfolio and potential losses from a 
fall in the value of instruments where investments are held, both linked with 
general market conditions. Also a lack of further growth of the Fund by 
donors and philanthropists.  

Risk is managed by the Community Foundation in Wales according to its 
investment strategy and scrutinised quarterly by the Foundation’s Finance, 
Risk and Investment Committee.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 1. Flintshire Community Endowment Fund – Impact report October 
2017

2. Community Foundation in Wales – Investment Strategy

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 Contact Officers: Karen Armstrong – Corporate Business and    
                              Communications Executive Officer
                              Liz Thomas – Technical Finance Manager

Telephone:           01352 702740
                              01352 702289 

E-mail:                  karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk
                              liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Community Foundation in Wales:  The Community Foundation in Wales 
is a unique charity which promotes and manages philanthropy.  Their role is 
to strengthen communities in ales by awarding grants to projects that make 
a sustainable impacts on local needs, and to help their clients make the 
most of their charitable giving.

Endowment Fund: A financial asset, typically held by a non-profit 
organisation, which contains the capital investments and related earnings 
leveraged by the non-profit organisation to fund the overall mission or 
objective.

Equities (Shares): Units of ownership interest in a corporation or financial 
asset that provide for an equal distribution in any profits, if any are declared, 
in the form of dividends.

Page 17

mailto:liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk


Fixed Term Deposit: Deposits of cash with terms attached relating to 
maturity and rate of return at a fixed rate of interest.

Money Market Fund: Pooled funds which invest in a range of short term 
assets providing high credit quality and high liquidity

Welsh Church Act Fund: The Welsh Church Act 1914 is an Act of 
Parliament under which the Welsh part of the Church of England was 
separated and dis-established.  The Welsh Church Act Trust was 
established from the proceeds and assets, which were distributed evenly 
amongst the former County Councils in Wales and further divided between 
the Unitary Authorities with their establishment in 1996. 

Page 18



 

www.cfiw.org.uk                                          Charity Number 1074655/Company Number 03670680 

FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND 
IMPACT REPORT OCTOBER 2017 

P
age 19



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       2 

CONTENTS           

 

 
Introduction     3 

 

News      4 

 

Fund History & Overview   7 

 

Financial Performance   8  

 

Fund Statement    9 

        

Additional Services for Local Authorities 10 

 

Summary of Grants    11 

 

Analysis     17     

 

Case Studies     18 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Picture on Front Cover – Live Music Now – Dan Walsh residency within Ysgol Pen Coch.   
 

P
age 20



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       3 

INTRODUCTION 
 

 
 

The Community Foundation in Wales is 

pleased to report grant-making that has 

continued to increase year on year, 

distributing over £2.6 million last year to 

over 540 groups and individuals, 

supporting over 5,000 volunteers and 

62,000 beneficiaries.  Our endowment 

portfolio currently stands at over £13m, 

a long-term, sustainable source of 

funding for communities across Wales.    

 

Within our portfolio the Flintshire 

Community Endowment Fund is a long-

term source of funding to support 

education in Flintshire, helping us to fulfil 

our vision for a Wales with a thriving 

voluntary and community sector where 

local people have the financial resources 

to deliver projects addressing local 

needs.  We see the Flintshire Community 

Endowment Fund as a catalyst for 

developing local philanthropy – an 

inspiration to a new generation of 

philanthropists in Flintshire. The 

Hawarden Relief in Need Fund, which 

supports groups and individuals in and 

immediately around Hawarden, was 

transferred to us shortly after 

establishing the Flintshire Community 

Endowment Fund and helps to ensure 

that some of the most vulnerable people 

in Flintshire have access to funding to 

support them when in financial crisis. 

 

I hope you will once again enjoy reading 

and digesting the details of the awards 

made from the Flintshire Community 

Endowment Fund in 2016 and 2017.  

We are delighted to work with you to 

support community groups and 

individuals, focussing on educational 

attainment, especially with those seen 

as the most vulnerable in communities.    

 

As always we continue to add value to 

your Fund by ensuring organisations that 

receive awards are appropriately 

constituted, compliant and managing 

their money efficiently and effectively.  

We monitor award recipients to discuss 

their work in the first instance through a 

written report, and by following up 

compliance with Charity Commission 

requirements where appropriate.  On 

occasion we will follow this up with a 

phonecall to further discuss their work 

and sometimes a visit. 

 

Please do advise us if you have any 

suggestions or changes you would like to 

make regarding the content or format. 

We’re always pleased to receive 

feedback and are continually looking for 

ways to improve our reports.  

 

With best wishes from the team at the 

Community Foundation in Wales.  

 

Andrea Powell 

Grants & Programmes Manager 

October 2017 

  

 

 

 

P
age 21



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       4 

 

COMMUNITY FOUNDATION IN WALES NEWS
 

UPDATE 

In Philanthropy Week 2016  the 

Community Foundation in Wales was 

delighted to honour three very different 

philanthropists, all of whom we have 

worked closely with in recent months 

and years.   People who give their time, 

treasure and talent to help communities 

throughout Wales.   

 

We gave an award to Ali and May 

Mosawi, who from humble beginnings 

have now set up their own family 

Foundation to distributue funding to 

organisations both in the UK and beyond 

working to further their passions and 

beliefs.  They are also committed to 

supporting our work within the 

Community Foundation in Wales.  You 

can read more about their story in our 

Annual Review (pages 18 & 19) 

 

We also awarded Kelly Davies. As a 

former Premier League football player 

herself, Kelly understood that sports 

clubs have a unique position of trust and 

connection in their local communities. At 

the same time thousands of clubs fail 

due to a lack of proper management.  

 

 

Kelly founded Vi-Ability in 2010 to 

engage unemployed local youth in re- 

energising run-down clubs and turning 

them into thriving and sustainable  

community hubs whilst equipping youth 

with valuable employability skills. 

Starting a pilot in her hometown club of 

Colwyn Bay, Kelly engaged 20 NEETs age 

16-18, taking on school drop-outs as well 

as ex-offenders. The success was 

unheard of with 20 out of 20 completing 

the course and 18 of them going into 

full-time jobs. Kelly gave up her football 

career after playing in the highest 

women’s league and being at the top of 

her career as a full welsh international. A 

year after piloting, Vi-Ability was awarded 

the Wales Social Enterprise of the Year. 

Soon after, Kelly was awarded the Big 

Society Award by the UK Prime Minister, 

and decided to dedicate her full-time 

attention to bring Vi-Ability’s model to its 

full potential across the UK. 

 

Our third award was to Chris Rogers, a 

volunteer who gives up her time - a 

considerable number of hours each 

week - to support the community of Bro 

Aberffraw on Anglesey.  We met Chris  

 

 

through our work on the Spirit of 2012 

funded Fourteen project.  She 

epitomises volunteering in Wales and  

accepted the award on behalf of ALL 

volunteers.  Chris was keen to point out 

that she gets as much out of 

volunteering herself as the community 

gets out of her, and if it wasn’t for the 

Fourteen project she would never of had 

so much fun! 

 

 
 

In February 2016, Mari-Wyn Elias-Jones 

joined the Community Foundation in 

Wales as our Development Manager.  

Following the successful partnership with 

Carmarthenshire business Melin 

Tregwynt., Mari-Wyn built a relationship 

with Welsh jewellery designer and maker 

Emma-Kate Francis.  Emma-Kate used 

P
age 22



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       5 

our daffodil logo as her inspiration to 

create a range of jewelley, with 30% of 

the sale proceeds being donated to the 

Fund for Wales. The new design was 

launched in November 2016, just in time 

for the Christmas market.  

 

We are also delighted to announce the 

appointment of Richard Williams as the 

new Chief Executive of the Community 

Foundation in Wales. 

  

Richard joined us in September 2017 

from the charity Action on Hearing 

Loss, where he was Director for Wales. 

Prior to working in the third sector, 

Richard was a newspaper editor heading 

up the South Wales Echo and Wrexham 

Evening Leader, having also held senior 

positions on the Daily Post and Wales on 

Sunday. He is a board member of 

the Wales Council for Voluntary 

Action and Hafan Cymru, and national 

third sector representative on the Powys 

Regional Partnership Board. 

  

Reflecting on his appointment, Richard 

said: "I am delighted to be joining the 

Community Foundation in Wales team 

and look forward to working to ensure we 

make an even bigger positive impact on 

communities across Wales." 

 

We are delighted that Alun Evans was 

appointed as the new Chairman of 

Community Foundation in Wales. Alun is 

Business Development Director at 

Quilter Cheviot Investment Management 

and is also a trustee of UK Community 

Foundations, Walthamstow Hall School, 

and St David’s Academy School.  

 

 

 
 

New Programmes    

We followed through on our work with 

the Pears Foundation through 2016 to 

run an interfaith community cohesion 

programme.   The fund culminated in a 

very successful event in September 

2016 where each of the groups funded 

through the programme attended a 

learning and sharing event where they 

updated the invited audience made up of 

Foundation Trustees, other groups 

working in the area, key stakeholders 

including Welsh Government and other 

funders, on the work that has been 

undertaken with this funding.  Feedback 

was incredibly positive with the groups 

telling us how valuable it was to meet 

with and hear from others working in a 

similar field of work.   

 

We also established a completely new 

fund working with the South Wales Police 

and Crime Commissioner’s office, the 

Fund has a focus on victims of crime.  

Organisations that submitted 

applications were invited to pitch their 

ideas to an audience that included 

specially selected panel members that 

included victims of crime.  Ten 

organisations received funding and will 

be closely monitored to inform the future 

work of the South Wales Police and 

Crime Commissioner.  

 

We are continuing our partnership with a 

handful of UK Trusts and Foundations to 

deliver the ‘New Beginnings Fund’.  The 

fund will this year focus on 

unaccompanied minors in response to 

the recognised gap in provision for this 

very vulnerable group of refugees and 

P
age 23



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       6 

asylum seekers moving to Britain. 

Funding is available to increase the 

capacity of small to medium sized 

charities and community organisations 

to meet the support needs of children 

and young people from families seeking 

asylum. 

 

Grant making 

Over recent months, we have noticed 

that an  increased number of cheques 

sent though the post have not been 

received by groups.  As of April 2017, all 

of our payments are made by BACS 

transfer.  This will mean a slight change 

in our processes and our communication 

with groups but will ultimately be a safer, 

quicker and more streamlined method of 

payment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 24



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       7 

FUND HISTORY & OVERVIEW  
 

HISTORY 
The Flintshire Community Endowment 

Fund was established in September 

2013 following the decision by Flintshire 

County Council to transfer the assets 

obtained following the closure of a range 

of historic trust funds to a new ‘umbrella’ 

Fund at the Community Foundation in 

Wales.  The Fund was officially launched 

in November 2013 at Airbus in 

Broughton.  The value of the endowment 

on transfer was £178,998.   

 

 

OVERVIEW 
Flintshire Community Endowment Fund 

grants are awarded at an annual grants 

panel.  The Fund has its own grants 

panel which is made up of six members, 

each with good knowledge and 

experience of the needs within Flintshire.  

The members are nominated by the 

Council and serve for a minimum period 

of three years.  The current members 

are: 

 

 Karen Armstrong, Flintshire 

Council Officer 

 Trevor Jones, Flintshire Council 

Officer 

 Aaron Shotton, Leader, Flintshire 

County Council 

 June Brady, Flintshire County 

Voluntary Council 

 Christine Sheibani, local 

businesswoman and 

philanthropist 

 

 

The Panel is chaired by a senior staff 

member of the Community Foundation in 

Wales.  Panel recommendations are 

presented to the Foundation’s board of 

trustees which reviews and ratifies grant 

decisions.  The input and knowledge of 

panel members has been invaluable and 

ensured that all grant decisions are 

made locally, informed by knowledge of 

local needs and priorities. 

 

All grants are awarded subject to strict 

terms & conditions and are monitored 

after six months to ensure compliance 

with the terms of the grant and to 

measure the impact of the grants on 

individuals and communities.

P
age 25



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       8 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE   
 

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO  

The value of the Flintshire Community 

Endowment Fund on transfer in Autumn 

2013 was £178,998.  This was following 

the top-slicing of £20,000 of unspent 

historically accrued income in order to 

provide immediate grant-making over 

years one and two.  As at 30 September 

2017 the endowment is valued at 

£209,652. 

  

In accordance with our investment 

strategy, which manages risk through a 

diversified portfolio split between three 

investment managers, the endowment 

was invested with Rathbones, M&G 

Investments, and latterly, CCLA.  

 

The Performance of the investment 

managers is monitored on a regular 

basis by the Foundation’s Finance 

Manager and scrutinised quarterly by the 

Finance, Risk & Investment Committee.  

A full review of our Investment Managers 

is carried out every three years. The last 

review was carried out in January 2016 

and we were pleased to report that all of 

our investment managers performed 

above their agreed benchmark over a 

three year period.  

 

Last year we reported on a rather 

difficult investment environment. The 

first quarter of 2016 saw the UK 

economy enter a bear market, and 

investors were preoccupied with fears 

about the pace of China’s economic 

slowdown and the threat of deflation. A 

year later, and almost 10 years since the 

start of the global financial crisis, a 

synchronised global economic upturn is 

at last under way, which includes the US, 

Europe, Asia and most large developing 

countries. Interest rates, though rising, 

are still low; deflation fears have 

receded; and company profits are high in 

the US and recovering in the rest of the 

world. As might be expected we have 

seen improved performance throughout 

2016 and into 2017. This saw the value 

of the endowment rising by over 14% on 

the 2016 valuation, with a further 2% 

unrealised gain through the first two 

quarters of 2017/18. It takes the total 

return (gross) over the first four years of 

managing the trust to 35%. 

 

Because of strong returns over the last 

12 months we have now generated a 

real term capital buffer of £12k, or 7% of 

the original value. In line with our total 

return approach to investment, and in 

response to the strong demand for 

funding in Flintshire during 2016/17, we 

decided to supplement the income from 

the endowment by realising some of the 

capital gain, enabling us to meet needs 

whilst still growing the capital above 

inflation.  

 

Looking back to September 2013, when 

the Fund was transferred, we have now 

made grants totaling £34,082, which is 

almost one fifth of the original value of 

the endowment. Over the same period, 

we have successfully grown the 

endowment by 18% (7% above inflation) 

which leaves it in a strong position to 

meet future needs in Flintshire.   

 

 

P
age 26



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       9 

FUND STATEMENT 

 
 As at 30 September 2017        

         

   

Income & 

Expenditure  Capital  Total  

         

 Income        

 Initial capital endowed  -  £178,975  £178,975  

 Top-sliced income for grant-making  £20,000  -  £20,000  

 Investment income   £31,154  -  £31,154  

 Interest   £379  -  £379  

         

 Total income  £51,533   £178,975   £230,508  

         

 Expenditure        

 Grants (4 years)  £34,082  -  £34,082  

 Annual management fee  (4 years)  £14,001  -  £14,001  

         

 Total expenditure  £48,083       £48,083  

         

 Gains/(losses) on investments  -  £30,677  £30,677  

         

   £3,450   £209,652   £213,102  

         

P
age 27



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       10 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES 
 

In addition to our trust transfer service, 

which has been adopted and endorsed 

by 7 Local Authorities in Wales, we also 

offer professional fund management and 

optional grant making service to trustees 

of charitable trusts where the trustee is 

bound by law to remain the custodian of 

the trust. 

  

In October 2009 Powys County Council 

embraced our fund management 

services for its Welsh Church Acts Fund. 

At the time of transfer the capital value 

of the assets totalled £1,643,763.  

  

As at 31st March 2017 the capital value 

of the Fund had increased to 

£2,368,522, an unrealised capital gain 

of £724,759 or 44%. The Fund has also 

achieved gross income, net of fees, and 

available for grant making, of £345,176, 

a return of 21% 

  

The overall performance of the Fund 

during the period October 2009 to 31st 

March 2017, net of professional fees, 

demonstrates a healthy return of 65% 

  

Following the Foundations presentation 

to members of the Corporate Resources 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

(CROSC) in May 2016 members in 

attendance supported further 

investigation of the potential transfer of 

the management and administration of 

the Flintshire Tri-Partite Welsh Church 

Acts Fund to the Foundation. In the 

interim period the Foundation has 

submitted a formal proposal for 

consideration by the Trustee of the Fund 

and its tri-partite members namely 

Denbighshire and Wrexham Councils. 

The outcome of their considerations and 

recommendations are contained in a 

report to be presented to members at 

the time of the CROSC Meeting to be 

held on 14th December 2017. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 28



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       11 

SUMMARY OF GRANTS AWARDED  
 

  

Round 
Grant Applicant 

Name 
Project Description 

Amount 

applied for 

Amount 

Awarded 
Notes 

GROUPS 

1 2016 
Cylch Meithrin 

Terrig 

To purchase new storage units 

and new play equipment/ toys. 
£750.00 £500.00 

£250 for toys  £250 

for storage 

2 2016 

Flintshire Optec 

Japanese Youth 

Exchange Trust 

To provide an annual cultural 

and educational exchange 

between three towns in Miyagi 

Prefecture in Japan and 

Flintshire involving six 

students. 

£750.00 £750.00 

Specify that this 

grant is to be spent 

on airfares 

3 2016 Gwyl Cadi Ha 

Towards Welsh folk-dancing 

training for staff and pupils of 

Flintshire primary schools. 

Creating a CD of dance 

accompaniment to practise for 

it. 

£750.00 £750.00 

Conditional upon 

naming the schools 

who will participate 

in the project 

4 2016 
Live Music Now 

Wales 

For a three day residency in 

Ysgol Pen Coch, to involve 

music making workshops 

delivered by musician Dan 

Walsh, tailored to the 

children's needs. 

£750.00 £750.00 

Conditional upon 

the school knowing 

about the project 

P
age 29



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       12 

5 2016 

Techniquest 

Glyndwr (trading 

name of North 

Wales Science) 

Towards the costs of hands-on 

science clubs to support the 

educational development,  

teamwork and communication 

skills of young people and their 

families through fun, science 

themed activities. 

£750.00 £750.00   

INDIVIDUALS 

6 2016 Anita Winterbottom 

Contribution towards the cost 

of competing at the Dance 

World Cup in June 2016.  

£695.00 £500.00   

7 2016 Bethan Goodwin 

Contribution towards the cost 

of competing at the Dance 

World Cup in June 2016.  

£750.00 £500.00   

8 2016 Catrin Mai Edwards 

Contribution towards a trip to 

Patagonia, selected by Urdd 

Gobaith Cymru, to form 

cultural links with the Welsh 

colony there. 

£1,000.00 £750.00   

9 2016 
Charlotte Elin 

Davies 

Contribution towards the cost 

of competing at the Dance 

World Cup in June 2016.  

£750.00 £500.00   

10 2016 
Daisy Elizabeth 

Miller 

Contribution towards the cost 

of competing at the Dance 

World Cup in June 2016.  

£750.00 £500.00   

11 2016 Emily Rose Miller 

Contribution towards the cost 

of competing at the Dance 

World Cup in June 2016.  

£750.00 £500.00   

P
age 30



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       13 

12 2016 Jonathan Phillips 

To help with travel expenses 

and fees for the National Youth 

Orchestra of Great Britain and 

Liverpool Philharmonic Youth 

Orchestra. 

£750.00 £750.00   

13 2016 Maddison Spencer 

Contribution towards the cost 

of competing at the Dance 

World Cup in June 2016.  

£750.00 £500.00   

14 2016 Olivia Millington 

Contribution towards the cost 

of competing at the Dance 

World Cup in June 2016.  

£750.00 £500.00   

15 2016 Olivia Preece 

Towards the costs of 

volunteering abroad with 

Volunteer Eco Students Abroad 

(VESA).  

£750.00 £750.00   

15 2016 Sasha Hayes 

Contribution towards the cost 

of competing at the Dance 

World Cup in June 2016.  

£750.00 £500.00   

16 2016 Shikiera Davies 

Contribution towards the cost 

of competing at the Dance 

World Cup in June 2016.  

£750.00 £500.00   

GROUPS 

1 2017 

2480 (Holywell) 

Squadron Training 

Corps 

To replace 10 education 

tables. As part of larger project 

looking at many aspects of our 

provision. 

£750.00 £750.00   

2 2017 DangerPoint 

Pupils from 5 schools in 

Flintshire will visit DangerPoint 

to receive interactive safety 

education 

£700.00 £700.00   

P
age 31



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       14 

3 2017 
Quay Watermen's 

Association 

To establish a Junior Quay 

Watermen’s Group, to interest 

local youngsters in river-based 

activities and give them skills 

and an understanding of the 

maritime heritage of their town 

£750.00 £750.00 

Clarify the need for 

audio equipment in 

what appears to be 

a photographic 

based arts project. 

4 2017 

Stop it Now! Wales 

(Lucy Faithfull 

Foundation) 

To meet audiences of parents 

and carers to deliver 2 hour 

education sessions on how 

they can keep their children 

safe and prevent child sexual 

abuse and exploitation. 

£750.00 £750.00 

Condition - that the 

work addresses 

gaps within existing 

provision.  Identify 

groups and schools 

that the project will 

work in. 

INDIVIDUALS 

5 2017 Catrin Mai Edwards 
Training and performing with 

the National Youth Choir 
£300.00 £300.00   

6 2017 
Charlotte 

Parsonage 

Attending a mental health 

volunteering event in Bali 
£750.00 £0.00 

Charlotte declined 

the offer as she is 

unable to attend her 

course this year due 

to family illness. 

7 2017 Ella Brown 

Travel to Germany to represent 

Wales in the National Dance 

World Cup 

£500.00 £500.00   

8 2017 Erin Ramsey 

Travel to Germany to represent 

Wales in the National Dance 

World Cup 

£1,283.00 £500.00   

9 2017 Esme Kennedy 

Travel to Germany to represent 

Wales in the National Dance 

World Cup 

£1,823.00 £500.00   

P
age 32



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       15 

10 2017 Freya Harrison 

Representing Girlguiding 

Cymru at an International 

Jamboree in Sonderborg and 

Copenhagen 

£400.00 £400.00   

11 2017 Harry Smallman 

Travel to Germany to represent 

Wales in the National Dance 

World Cup 

£750.00 £500.00   

12 2017 Melissa Jenkins 

Travel to Germany to represent 

Wales in the National Dance 

World Cup 

£500.00 £500.00   

13 2017 Nel Meirion 

Travel to Germany to represent 

Wales in the National Dance 

World Cup 

£750.00 £500.00   

14 2017 Rhiannon Goodwin 

Travel to Germany to represent 

Wales in the National Dance 

World Cup 

£668.20 £500.00   

15 2017 Robyn Morgan 

Travel to Germany to represent 

Wales in the National Dance 

World Cup 

£1,283.00 £500.00   

16 2017 Rowan Crosby 

Specialist lessons to help a 

para-rider (disabled dressage 

writer) represent Team GB at 

the 2024 Paralympics 

£750.00 £500.00   

17 2017 Georgia Ellis 

To undertake a Doctorate in 

Physiotherapy in Connecticut 

USA 

£500.00 £500.00   

18 2017 Katie Dawson 

Travel to Germany to represent 

Wales in the National Dance 

World Cup 

£500.00 £395.00   

19 2017 Mia Dawson 

Travel to Germany to represent 

Wales in the National Dance 

World Cup 

£500.00 £395.00   

P
age 33



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       16 

20 2017 Amber Dawson 

Travel to Germany to represent 

Wales in the National Dance 

World Cup 

£500.00 £395.00   

21 2017 Hannah Carrington 
Towards the cost of an 

Accounting Qualification 
£500.00 £500.00 

Initial application 

through Kim Inspire.  

Volunteer was 

encouraged to apply 

as an individual 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 34



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       17 

ANALYSIS 
As the Flintshire Community Endowment 

Fund has become more established, it is 

becoming more well known within the 

county.  The following table shows the 

increase in grants awarded since the 

beginning of this Fund.  

 

Year 
awarded 

Number 
of 

Grants 

Total 
Value 

2013/14 7 £4,830 

2014/15 9 £6,655 

2015/16 20 £12,262 

2016/17 20 £10,335 

 

The Fund has now spent down the 

accrued underspend which will mean that 

funding available is likely to be less next 

year - without the underspend to fall back 

on the sum available with be reliant on 

the income accrued in the previous 12 

months.    

 

The Fund is now beginning to receive 

repeat applications from groups and 

individuals year on year, often for the 

same or similar project. In the last round 

particularly the panel took the decision to 

give preference to organisations and 

individuals that  have not received  a 

grant from the Flintshire Community 

Endowment Fund previously.   Emphasis 

is being placed on funding individuals  

who show a degree of talent and are 

representing Flintshire on at least 

regional level and/or who can 

satisfactorily demonstate financial and/or 

social need.  The number of applications 

may well continue to increase, so it will 

become more important to have a clear 

rationale for rejection, the criteria has 

been updated to clearly state these 

preferences as a means of managing 

expectation. 

 

LEVERAGE FOR FLINTSHIRE 

During the last 12 months we have 

awarded a further £97,610 in grants to 

organisations and individuals in Flintshire 

from 6 different funds.  The Community 

Endowment Fund in the neighbouring 

county of Wrexham has funded work with 

Kim Inspire, Menter Iaith Maelor and 

Dangerpoint, with the Community 

Endowment fund in neighbouring 

Denbighshire also funding work with 

North Wales Superkids and Dangerpoint.  

 

DASU had received a further 3 years of 

funding via the Henry Smith Charity for 

work to support victims of Domestic 

Abuse.  NEWCIS has also received a grant 

of 3 years funding to work with carers 

across North East Wales including 

Flintshire. 

Grants have also been awarded to 

Flintshire groups from Santander 

Community Solutions fund and from 

Comic Relief Community Cash.  The 

Hawarden and District Relief in Need 

Fund is becoming more widely known 

about.  We continue to make crisis grant 

to vulnerable individuals in the area. 

 

 

 

P
age 35



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       18 

CASE STUDIES    
Flintshire Optec Japanese Youth 

Trust works to promote, maintain, 

improve and advance education by 

arranging and funding exchange visits for 

the young people of Flintshire to Japan. 

The exchanges help to promote an 

understanding and appreciation of 

Japanese culture, education and 

commerce, as well as providing 

opportunity to learn and practice the 

Japanese language and encourage 

better international relations and 

friendship. The exchange has been in 

operation for over 30 years, and the 

Trust hopes to continue to offer the 

opportunity to other Flintshire students 

for as many years as possible. A grant of 

£750 from the Flintshire Community 

Endowment Fund contributed to airfares, 

thus supporting the Trust to extend the 

lifetime of the exchange.  

 

A post exchange meeting was held in 

September where the students and 

families had an opportunity to give 

feedback, which was constructive and 

positive. The students and families felt 

that it was a unique and life-enriching 

experience, and hope to maintain the 

friendships they have made and return 

to Japan one day. Some of the students 

have undertaken to learn the Japanese 

language and apply to university to study 

Japanese. The parents felt that the  

money they had spent was affordable 

and had not cost more than they 

expected and the whole experience was 

extremely rewarding.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Councillor Peter Curtis, Chairman of 

Flintshire County Council, said: 

"The links that have been forged by this 

exchange are unique in offering the 

opportunity for both countries to come 

together to exchange ideas and learn 

about each other's way of life and 

culture. The youth exchange has proved 

to be a major success for developing an 

understanding and tolerance, 

particularly in our young generation, 

which can only be of benefit to future 

international relations." 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 36



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       19 

Techniquest Glyndwr provides 

support for the advancement of 

education and learning, particularly 

amongst children, of science and 

technology, and develops the public 

understanding of science and technology 

through the delivery of educational 

programmes, science festivals and other 

such activities. The group maintains a 

science discovery centre in Wrexham 

and visits schools across North Wales 

and North West England with hands-on 

workshops and shows linked to STEM 

(science, technology, engineering and 

maths). 

 
The group was awarded a grant of £750 

from the Flintshire Community 

Endowment Fund to set up two new five-

week science clubs in Ysgol Maesglas 

and Ysgol Bryn Gwalia, both 

economically and socially deprived areas 

of Flintshire.  The clubs have helped to 

engage pupils and their families in the 

local communities around the schools 

with STEM activities. 

 

The science clubs were well attended by 

children aged 7-11 and their families, 

including younger siblings, parents and 

grandparents. The children were highly 

engaged by the activities on offer, and 

relished the opportunity to try out new 

experiences such as going inside an 

inflatable planetarium to stargaze.  

The schools where the clubs were based 

could not fund a science club on their 

own and were grateful for a project to 

take place promoting family learning, 

especially using the expertise of an 

outside organisation. A teacher from one 

of the schools involved commented the 

most valuable parts were “working 

collaboratively with each other and 

parents. The children were able to use 

skills in a way they found very enjoyable 

and interesting. Science through 

creative skills!” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 37



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       20 

Jonathan Phillips is a musician, he was 

born in Wrexham, but brought up in 

Flintshire. His greatest musical achievement 

so far has been to secure a place with the 

National Youth Orchestra of Great Britain for 

2016. Jonathan is proud to say that he 

comes from Flintshire in the orchestra's 

publicity material. Although he has 

performed in some very prestigious regional 

and national groups, Jonathan has 

continued to perform with school and county 

groups as well. By staying involved with local 

music he is able to act as a mentor and a 

role model for other young musicians in 

Flintshire. 

 
Jonathan was awarded a grant of £750 from 

the Flintshire Community Endowment Fund 

to help with travel expenses and fees for the 

National Youth Orchestra of Great Britain 

and Liverpool Philharmonic Youth Orchestra. 

The funding has supported Jonathan to 

achieve a high standard in his orchestral 

percussion playing, and has given him the 

opportunity to be conducted by some of 

Britain's greatest musicians and play with 

internationally renowned soloists.  

 

As part of the National Youth Orchestra's 

'Inspire' programme, Jonathan attended a 

three day course to work alongside younger 

and less experienced musicians, helping 

them move forward and attain confidence 

and motivation in their playing. The 

experience Jonathan gained also helped him 

to achieve a place at the Royal Academy of 

Music in September 2017. 

A review of one of Jonathan's performances 

commented: 
"National Youth Orchestra gigs are tricky 

things to write about. What should we focus 

on? Marvel at teenagers doing a miraculous 

job? I prefer not. The measure of a good 

National Youth Orchestra gig is whether or 

not you can forget the players are the age 

they are. I did. This was a remarkable gig." 

 

 

  

P
age 38



FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       21 

Dance World Cup 

Funding from the Flintshire Community 

Endowment Fund has enabled 17 young 

people to have the opportunity to travel 

to Germany to compete and represent 

Wales at the prestigious Dance World 

Cup in 2016. Bethan, Charlotte, Daisy, 

Emily, Maddison, Olivia, Sasha, Shikiera, 

Robyn, Rhiannon, Olivia, Nel, Ella, Esme, 

Erin, Harry & Melissa were awarded 

£500 each to travel oversees in June 

2016 to compete in the dance 

competition. 

 

“The chance to perform overseas and to 

compete against dancers from different 

countries has given me the confidence to 

dance on stage to a wider audience” 

Charlotte. 

 

 

 
 

“I was lucky enough to meet people from 

all around the world and learn about the 

different aspects of their dance and 

culture. I have experienced how to act in 

a professional environment, therefore 

giving me valuable knowledge and skills 

that I will use in the future” Shikiera.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“I would like to thank you for your 

support, without which, competing at this 

level and in this competition would have 

not been possible. It is good to see 

young people receiving support for what 

they love to do most, and which helps 

them to excel/develop their knowledge 

of dance and the world’s peoples” Father 

of a beneficiary. 
 

 
 

 

 

    

P
age 39



 

FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY ENDOWMENT FUND | IMPACT REPORT 2017       22       

 

CONTACT  
 
The Community Foundation in Wales 

St Andrews House 

24 St Andrews Crescent 

Cardiff 

CF10 3DD 

 

02920 379580 

info@cfiw.org.uk 

www.cfiw.org.uk 

Charity Number :1074655 

Company Number : 03670680 

 

 @cfinwales 

  cfinwales 

 

P
age 40



Version 3: created by TM, date last modified September 2014, date last approved 30/09/2014 Page 1 of 4

Investment Strategy
INTRODUCTION

1. Purpose.  The purpose of this investment strategy is to institute proper guidelines for the ongoing 
management of the investments held by CFiW and to clarify the role, responsibilities and functions of 
the Finance, Risk & Investment Committee (FRIC).  The relevant governance aspects are:

a. Investment Powers. The Trustee Act 2000 gives Trustees a general power of investment to 
place funds in any kind of investment as though they were the absolute owner of those funds. 
However, whilst this act does not apply to a charitable company, the CFiW governing 
documents give Trustees such a power.

b. Duty of Care. Trustees have the following duties of care for investments:
 Exercise such care and skill as is reasonable in the circumstances (general duty of 

care).
 Consider the suitability of any investment for their charity – both the type and a 

particular investment of that type. 
 Consider the need for diversification - to reduce the risk of losses resulting from 

concentrating on a particular investment or type of investment. 
 Review the investments of the charity at appropriate periods.
 Obtain and consider advice from someone experienced in investment matters, unless 

there are good reasons for not doing so.

2. Management and Administration. The Board of Trustees has sole authority to approve and amend 
this investment strategy – which sets out how they will discharge this duty of care, including definition 
of powers delegated to the FRIC.  The FRIC is responsible for implementing this strategy and 
supervising the management of the portfolio.

3. Strategy Review Interval. This strategy document should normally be reviewed every three years.

4. Investment Requirements. CFiW’s requirements fall into two categories:

a. Short-term:
 Hold adequate funds to meet core liquidity and grant-making needs, and comply with 

reserves policy.
 Prudent custodianship of immediate income funds.

b. Long-term. Affordable long-term funding from endowment income/capital growth for 
payment of future grants and management fees. 

5. Short-term Aim. The FRIC is to meet CFiW’s needs through use of suitable bank accounts and term 
deposits that offer an appropriate balance of high return and operational convenience.

6. Property. CFiW holds a property inherited in 2009 that is tied to the Montgomery Intermediate 
Technical Education Fund. This property is the Old College, Newtown: a former school used by Powys 
County Council for offices under a lease till 2035 with pre-determined rent. This asset is classified as 
an investment property for balance sheet purposes, but cannot be regarded as part of the CFIW 

Appendix 2

Page 41



Version 3: created by TM, date last modified September 2014, date last approved 30/09/2014 Page 2 of 4

diversified portfolio for performance measurement purposes. The FRIC has delegated responsibility 
for the discharge of freeholder and lease duties - seeking specialist advice as appropriate.

7. The remainder of this strategy document addresses CFiW’s long-term financial investment 
requirement.

AIMS & OBJECTIVES FOR ENDOWMENT INVESTMENTS

8. Aims. The investment aims for the endowed funds (a mixture of permanent and expendable 
endowment) entrusted to CFiW’s stewardship are as follows:

 To maintain the real value of the portfolio through an economic cycle.
 To maintain the real value of CFiW’s endowment grant making and management fee 

generation from investment income on an annual basis.
 To have a moderate approach to risk. ‘Moderate’ means that medium volatility of asset value 

is expected.

9. Expenditure of Capital. 
 Some expenses, such as property valuation fees, must be paid from capital.
 Any other depletion of capital that is not covered by an explicit client agreement is a Board-

level decision. Such depletion would normally be the distribution of any capital gain above the 
portfolio’s real value. Depletion of permanent endowment capital also requires Charity 
Commission permission.

10. Objectives. The aims are to be achieved through the following objectives:

a. Diversification. Hold a balanced portfolio across the following asset classes: UK/Overseas 
Equities, UK/Overseas Government Bonds and Corporate Bonds, Commodities, Alternatives, 
Commercial Property, and Cash. The portfolio shall be split between 2 or 3 investment 
managers with no one manager having less than one third of the portfolio’s value. However, 
following due diligence trustees reserve the right to accept donor advised investments, with 
decisions made on a case-by-case basis by the FRIC and recommended to the Board for 
approval. Individual investment managers may have differing target asset allocations, such 
that the aggregate asset allocation of the composite CFiW portfolio lies within the parameters 
determined by FRIC.

b. Risk. Achieve a moderate risk profile through adequate asset, sector and stock 
diversification.
 
c. Investment Pool for CFIW Endowed Funds. To ensure that all endowed funds receive the 
pro-rata benefit of multiple manager diversification, CFiW is to operate an investment pool 
that gives each endowment fund a percentage share of the combined manager portfolios that 
is adjusted every time capital is added or withdrawn. Investment income is to be apportioned 
quarterly to each fund according to weighted average share; an income dilution levy is to be 
applied on capital addition to protect the income due to prior holdings. This does not apply to 
donor advised investments which remain separate to the investment pool.

d. Delegation. Delegate the management of the investment pool element of the portfolio to at 
least 2 and no more than 3 investment managers. Any delegation for directly-held securities 
as part of a segregated portfolio can be to only one manager; a segregated portfolio is 
expected to demonstrate superior benefits to a pooled fund. The delegation to all other 
managers must be for suitable pooled funds.

Page 42



Version 3: created by TM, date last modified September 2014, date last approved 30/09/2014 Page 3 of 4

e. Ethical Considerations. The primary responsibility of the investment portfolio is to provide 
income and capital resources to support CFiW’s current and future aims.  However, following a 
review by the Finance, Risk and Investment Committee in December 2014 it was agreed that 
the investment portfolio should have no direct exposure to companies which have significant 
holdings in tobacco, arms, gambling and pornography investments.

f. Investment Manager Appointments. The appointment of Investment Managers is a Board-
level decision on the recommendation of the FRIC. Whilst the continued tenure of the 
incumbent investment managers should be reviewed normally every 3 years along with this 
strategy, the appointments can be ended at any time. 

g. Advice. CFiW’s investment requirements are standard for an endowed grantmaking charity 
and therefore, assuming adequate FRIC familiarity with investing, there is no requirement for 
contracted professional investment advice. However, pro-bono advice from a suitably-
experienced charity investment professional would be desirable. Furthermore, the investment 
manager of a segregated portfolio can provide strategy and asset allocation advice. 
Otherwise, or when the impartiality of any adviser may be in question, the Board must rely on 
the FRIC’s interpretation of specialist press comment and the contrast of investment 
managers’ reports and performance.

11. Control of Segregated Portfolio.

a. CFiW Strategy. The Investment Manager is to receive a copy of the appropriate aims and 
objectives.

b. Management Agreement. The contract with the Investment Manager, the fee structure and 
performance measurement index shall be reviewed at least every 3 years by the FRIC. The 
agreement is to contain an agreed absolute annual income target (reviewed annually) and 
agreed benchmarks for composite total return and yield, both of which the investment 
manager is expected to outperform by agreed annualised percentages over a rolling three 
year period.

c. Asset Allocation. The manager will have discretion to deliver, in accordance with the risk 
objective, an asset allocation within the ranges determined by the FRIC for authorised asset 
classes and to select stocks to achieve a diversified holding within each asset class. In the 
event of actual or foreseen major shifts in world financial markets, the investment manager 
may approach the FRIC for permission to vary the above percentages.

d. Performance Reporting. The Investment Manager will report to the FRIC every quarter.  The 
report will consist of:

 A description of each investment including its percentage of the total portfolio, 
quantity, original cost, current market value, unrealised gain or loss, percentage yield 
and analysis of the current asset allocation by investment category.

 Comparison of portfolio performance with the benchmark performance measurement 
index.

 Comment on market outlook and likely future asset allocation.

e. Ad Hoc Valuations. To enable CFiW to track the value of individual funds within the common 
portfolio, the Investment Manager must provide a portfolio valuation on the date of every 
capital transaction (withdrawal from/addition to the portfolio) as requested by CFiW. 

Page 43



Version 3: created by TM, date last modified September 2014, date last approved 30/09/2014 Page 4 of 4

12. Control of Pooled Funds. For the purposes of this strategy, the term ‘Pooled Funds’ comprises 
both Common Investment Funds specific to Registered Charities, and regular retail funds and unit 
trusts. FRIC is responsible for:

 Scrutiny of the quarterly report from each fund for ongoing compatibility of the fund’s 
investment objective and asset allocation, both with this strategy and evolving FRIC views.

 Engagement with the investment managers as appropriate on significant issues. 
 Obtaining fund valuations on the date of every capital transaction (withdrawal from/addition 

to the portfolio).
 Adjusting the asset allocation between pooled funds as appropriate. 

13. FRIC Monitoring and Reporting to Board. FRIC is to report to the Board quarterly on:
 For each investment manager and the aggregated CFiW portfolio: market valuation, yield, total 

return, asset allocation and performance against total return and yield benchmarks.
 Market conditions affecting performance and market outlook.

Approved by CFiW Board on 21 September 2012. Item 10e amended by Finance, Risk and 
Investment Committee September 2014. Items 10a, 10c and 10e amended by Finance, Risk and 
Investment Committee March 2016.

Page 44



CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Thursday, 14 December 2017

Report Subject Workforce Information Report – Quarter 2

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Corporate Management and Assets

Report Author Senior Manager, Human Resources and Organisational 
Development

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To provide Members with an update for the second quarter for 2017/18. This report 
provides details of the following:

 Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE)
 Organisational Age Profile
 Employee Turnover and Stability (Including Redundancies and Early 

Retirements)
 Attendance 
 Performance Appraisals and Development
 Resource Management (Agency Workers)
 Equality and Diversity

The format of this report and the accompanying Workforce Information is intended 
to focus on organisational performance and trends, with the information being 
presented in a dashboard format. The dashboards are a visual presentation of data, 
showing the current status and historical trends of the Council’s performance against 
key performance indicators.

The report provides a brief narrative on the overall performance against a number 
of indicators. A more detailed explanation is provided on an exceptional basis where 
performance is falling below organisational performance indicators or where there 
has been a significant movement, either upwards or downwards, in the reported 
trends. The narrative will include an explanation for the movement in trend and 
details of any proposed actions to improve or maintain performance.
The performance information for the whole organisation is split to show Schools and 

Page 45

Agenda Item 5



Non-Schools data separately.  The Schools data is further broken down into 
Teaching and Non-Teaching.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Members comment on Workforce Information Report for quarter two 
2017/18 to 30 September 2017

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE WORKFORCE INFORMATION REPORT 

1.01 Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE)

The headcount and FTE figures for quarter two show an overall decrease of 
396 FTE across the Council since April, Non-schools show a decrease of 
354 FTE, and Schools show an overall decrease of 42 FTE. Within Schools, 
teaching staff show a decrease of 220 FTE whereas non-teaching staff 
decreased by 1 FTE. 

The significant reduction of FTE for quarter two is attributable to the transfer 
of Aura Leisure and Libraries Limited on 1 September 2017, and also the 
closure of John Summers High School on 31 August 2017.

1.02 Age Profiling

Age profiling the organisation, departments and teams is an important part 
of understanding the age demographics of our workforce and where we may 
need to focus attention.  Why do we use age profiling?

 to identify work areas with a high average age 

 to help plan for retirements and how we will recruit or retain staff 

 to highlight patterns and trends across our workforce 

 to assist workforce planning.

Understanding our age profile supports good workforce planning, enables 
the Council to provide a guide to the future number of potential retirements 
and succession plan by identifying any skill gaps that may arise. Without an 
analysis of age profile, no workable long term planning can be made.

1.03 Employee Turnover and Stability (Including Redundancies and Early 
Retirements)

The turnover percentage for the Council during quarter two is 9.81%. As 
explained under the Headcount and Full Time Equivalent section, the 
majority of this is attributable to the transfer of Aura Leisure and Libraries 
Limited, and the closure of John Summers High School. This has meant that 
the cumulate figure for 2017/18 is 16.95%.

Page 46



1.04 Attendance

The FTE days lost for the Council during quarter two is 1.83, which provides 
a cumulative figure of 3.70 for 2017/18. This is a significant improvement 
when compared to the same period in 2016/17 which recorded 4.41 FTE 
days lost. The cumulative figure as at quarter two identifies that, if absence 
rates remain at the current level for the remainder of the reporting year the 
projected out-turn for 207/18 will be 7.40.

1.05 Performance Appraisals and Development

Performance Appraisals remain a high priority within the Council. 
Historically, appraisal completion levels have been reported on the basis of 
information (data) held in iTrent.  A fundamental review of the data for each 
portfolio identified the requirement to establish and apply an agreed set of 
eligibility criteria so that future reporting is both meaningful and consistent 
across the Council.

The following exemptions for inclusion in this performance indicator were 
agreed last year, as follows: 

 Schools based employees
 Relief/casual workers 
 Employees on long term sick leave
 Employees on maternity leave or undertaking a career break
 Employees in their first 6 months of employment (new starters)
 Employees working a period of notice (leavers)
 Employees whose appraising manager is/has been absent for a 

prolonged period
 Employees of Clwyd Theatre Cymru
 Employees engaged on a fixed term contract of less than 12 months 

duration

The revised annual target for completion of appraisals is 100% of eligible 
employee’s, and as at 30 September 2017, the recorded completion rate on 
iTrent against eligible employees was 72%. 

Appraisal is one part of a wider performance management picture.  In 
addition to quality day to day supervision, most employees benefit from 
regular team meetings, and 1-2-1’s with their manager which provides an 
opportunity for coaching and formal and informal progress discussions 
throughout the year.  

All portfolios are in the process of reviewing progress against the target, and 
updating records to reflect the number of appraisals scheduled to take place 
over the next few months and those recently completed.    A follow-up report 
detailing the completion levels of appraisals across the Service Portfolios 
will be shared with members during the Committee meeting of 18 January 
2018. 

1.06 Resource Management (Agency Workers)

Page 47



The cumulative agency spend for 2017/18 is £1.2m, which is a significant 
improvement when compared to the cumulative agency spend as at quarter 
two for the previous year (£2.3m).
As in previous years, the majority of the agency spend is within Streetscene 
and Transportation (£385,000), and Social Services (£445,000) 
respectively. However, the reduction in spend compared to the previous 
year illustrates that the Portfolios are working hard to reduce their use of 
agency workers and find alternative methods of fill for both temporary and 
permanent vacancies.  
Overall, there were 109 active agency placements on 30 September 2017.  
At the time there were 74 placements exceeded the 12 week Agency Worker 
Regulations threshold, the majority of placements, 46 were within 
Streetscene and Transportation, 15 in Community and Enterprise, 9 in 
Social Services, 3 in Governance, and 1 in Education and Youth. At the time 
of writing this report, the number of active placements had reduced to 87.

1.07 Equality and Diversity Workforce Monitoring

Workforce diversity monitoring is an important means of demonstrating, 
implementing and promoting equality of opportunity. 
Ongoing promotion and monitoring is carried out to gather information on 
the diversity of our workforce including potential recruits as well as existing 
employees. The Council collects diversity information based on current UK 
equality legislation which aims to prevent discrimination on grounds of age, 
disability, gender, race, sexual orientation, religion and other protected 
characteristics.  Information gathered can, if analysed regularly, help us to 
identify barriers that prevent access to employment and career development 
for certain groups of people, and to develop solutions, such as positive 
action plans or alternative policies and practices.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 None arising directly from this report.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 None as the dashboard report appended to this report details existing actual 
out-turns in the various measures. 

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 None arising directly from this report.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix One: Dashboard – Workforce Information Report Q2 2017/18

Page 48



6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 None.

Contact Officer: Sharon Carney, Senior Manager, Human Resources and 
Organisational Development.
Telephone: 01352 702139
E-mail: sharon_carney@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Headcount and FTE
This will provide information on the current levels of the Council’s workforce.

Age Profiling
The purpose of providing the Organisational Age Profile is to enable the 
Council to provide a guide to the future number of potential retirements and 
succession plan by identifying any skill gaps that may arise. Without an 
analysis of age profile, no workable long term planning can be made.

Employee Turnover and Stability (Including Redundancies and Early 
Retirements)
This information will provide the awareness of trends in turnover rates within 
the Council for potential measure to be put in place for high turnover rates, 
if applicable.

Attendance 
Attendance remains a high priority in the Council and will provide detailed 
information on the areas for improvement for absence/attendance. Stage 1 
and Stage 2 capability hearings are the formal stages of the Attendance 
Management policy where sanctions including dismissal take place.

Performance Appraisals and Development
Reporting on performance appraisals and development will enable more 
effective monitoring of potential training needs for future planning.

Resource Management
This information will include the usage of agency workers within the Council.

Equality and Diversity Workforce Monitoring
Information will be provided to inform what measures, if any, need to be 
implemented to prevent inequalities within the Council.

Page 49

mailto:sharon_carney@flintshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



CORPORATE DASHBOARD 
REPORTS 

(FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL)

2017/18 - QUARTER 2
(JULY - SEPTEMBER)

1

P
age 51



Table of Contents

1. Flintshire County Council Cumulative Totals................................................................4

2. Non - Schools
2.1. Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE)...................................................5
2.2. Age Profile...................................................................................................6
2.3. Attendance..................................................................................................9
2.4. Turnover and Stability................................................................................10
2.5. Equality and Diversity.................................................................................11
2.6. Resource Management (Agency)................................................................12

3. Schools
3.1. Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE)

3.1.1. Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE) - Schools...................13
3.1.2. Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE) - Teaching.................14
3.1.3. Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE) - Non-Teaching.........15

2

P
age 52



Table of Contents Cont...

3.2. Age Profile
3.2.1. Age Profile - Schools...................................................................16
3.2.2. Age Profile - Teaching.................................................................17
3.2.3. Age Profile - Non-Teaching.........................................................18

3.3 Attendance
3.3.1. Attendance - Schools..................................................................19
3.3.2. Attendance - Teaching................................................................20
3.3.3. Attendance - Non-Teaching........................................................21

3.4 Turnover and Stability
3.4.1. Turnover and Stability - Schools..................................................22
3.4.2. Turnover and Stability - Teaching................................................23
3.4.3. Turnover and Stability - Non-Teaching........................................24

3.5 Equality and Diversity
3.5.1. Equality and Diversity - Schools..................................................25
3.5.2. Equality and Diversity - Teaching................................................26
3.5.3. Equality and Diversity - Non-Teaching........................................27

3

P
age 53



2017/18 DASHBOARD
FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CUMULATIVE TOTALS

TOTAL HEADCOUNT

5,946
TOTAL FTE

4,645

LEAVERS / TURNOVER

1,095/16.95%

DAYS LOST PER FTE 2017/18

3.70
TARGET 2017/18 AT Q2

4.50

AGENCY SPEND 2017/18

£1.2m
TARGET 2017/18 AT Q2

£1.1m

4

P
age 54



TOTAL HEADCOUNT TOTAL FULL TIME EQUIVALENT

QUARTER 2 2017/18 DASHBOARD
HEADCOUNT AND FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) - NON SCHOOLS

2,753 2,400

HEADCOUNT AND FTE - 12 MONTH TREND

Decrease of  
699 people
(-25.39%)

Decrease of 
354 FTE

(-14.75%)

01/04/2017
3,452

30/09/2017
2,753

01/04/2017
2,754

30/09/2017
2,400

3422 3479 3479 3472 3482 3483 3452

3050 3034 2973 2965

2753
2738 2783 2779 2775 2772 2780 2754

2555 2547 2557 2554
2400

2300

2500

2700

2900

3100

3300

3500

3700

Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17

Headcount

FTE

5

P
age 55



QUARTER 2 2017-18 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - NON-SCHOOLS

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

25 - 34 35 - 44 45 - 49 50 - 54 55 - 59 60 - 64 65 - 69 70 - 75 75 and
over

4

7 7

11 11

1
0 0 0

Chief Executives

0

10
20

30

40

50

60

70

80

16 -
24

25 -
34

35 -
44

45 -
49

50 -
54

55 -
59

60 -
64

65 -
69

70 -
75

75
and
Over

30

60

77

62 60 57

39

12
4 0

Community and Enterprise

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

16 -
24

25 -
34

35 -
44

45 -
49

50 -
54

55 -
59

60 -
64

65 -
69

70 -
74

75
and
Over

9

37

57

42
52

36

18

3 2 1

Education and Youth

0

5

10

15

20

25

16 -
24

25 -
34

35 -
44

45 -
49

50 -
54

55 -
59

60 -
64

65 -
69

70 -
74

75
and
Over

9

19

25

19
17

11 10

0 0 0

Governance

6

P
age 56



QUARTER 2 2017-18 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - NON-SCHOOLS

0

2

4

6

8

10

16 - 24 25 - 34 35 - 44 45 - 49 50 - 54 55 - 59 60 - 64 65 - 69 70 - 74 75 and
Over

0 0

7

5 5

10
9

3

0 0

Organisational Change 2

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16

16 -
24

25 -
34

35 -
44

45 -
49

50 -
54

55 -
59

60 -
64

65 -
69

70 -
74

75
and
Over

6

11

15 14 15

11

5
3

0 1

Organisational Change 1

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40

16 -
24

25 -
34

35 -
44

45 -
49

50 -
54

55 -
59

60 -
64

65 -
69

70 -
74

75
and
Over

23
26

39

24
27 27

7
2 0 0

People and Resources

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

16 -
24

25 -
34

35 -
44

45 -
49

50 -
54

55 -
59

60 -
64

65 -
69

70 -
74

75
and
Over

8
16

58

22
27 25

20

3 0 1

Planning and Environment

7

P
age 57



QUARTER 2 2017-18 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - NON-SCHOOLS

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

16 -
24

25 -
34

35 -
44

45 -
49

50 -
54

55 -
59

60 -
64

65 -
69

70 -
74

75
and
Over

29

80
85

61

94
84

58

16
11

4

Streetscene and Transportation

0

50

100

150

200

250

16 -
24

25 -
34

35 -
44

45 -
49

50 -
54

55 -
59

60 -
64

65 -
69

70 -
74

75
and
Over

43

143

228

157 161
144

74

26
4 1

Social Services

8

P
age 58



DAYS LOST PER FTE AT 30/09/2017

30/09/2017
2.53

30/09/2016
2.75

Improvement of 0.22

QUARTER 2 2017/18 DASHBOARD
ATTENDANCE - NON-SCHOOLS

2.53

TOP 4 REASONS
1. STRESS, DEPRESSION, ANXIETY
2.  MUSCULOSKELETAL
3.  STOMACH, LIVER, VOMITING
4.  INFECTIONS

1.4

2.21

3.06

0.90

1.87

1.04

2.8

1.62

2.82
3.16

0
0.5

1
1.5

2
2.5

3
3.5

Portfolio Days Lost

Target FTE (Days Lost)

FTE DAYS LOST BY PORTFOLIO

9

P
age 59



LEAVERS - Q2 LEAVERS - 2017/18

QUARTER 2 2017/18 DASHBOARD
TURNOVER AND STABILITY - NON SCHOOLS

426 837

0

50

100

150

200

250

0 1 4 6 0

89

2
51

10 0 13 0 3

247

LEAVER REASON - Q2

10

P
age 60



QUARTER 2 2017/18 DASHBOARD
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY - NON-SCHOOLS

62.88%

37.12%
Female

Male

GENDER BREAKDOWN (%)

MALE
1,022
(37.12%)

FEMALE
1,731
(62.88%)

GENDER BREAKDOWN

10

2,034

692

17

BME

White

Not Stated

Prefer Not To Say

ETHNICITY
ETHNICITY BREAKDOWNBME - 10

WHITE - 2,034

NOT STATED - 692

10 9 14

13471265

5
103 Bisexual - 10

Gay Man - 9

Gay Woman/Lesbian - 14

Heterosexual/Straight - 1,347

Not Stated - 1,265

Other - 5

Prefer Not To Say - 103

SEXUAL ORIENTATION

PREFER NOT TO 
SAY - 17

11

P
age 61



QUARTER 2 2017/18 DASHBOARD
RESOURCE MANAGEMENT - AGENCY

0.00%

4.68%

0.36%
2.70%

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
1.63%

13.36%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

Chief Executives Community and
Enterpirse

Education and
Youth

Governance Organisational
Change 1

(Community)

Organisational
Change 2

(Alternative
Service Models)

People and
Resources

Planning and
Environment

Social Services Streetscene and
Transportation

Agency/Headcount Pecentage by Portolio Q2

0

20

40

60

0-12
weeks

13-26
weeks

27-52
weeks

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years 3 - 4 years 4 - 5 years 5+ years

35
47

15 9
2 1 0 0

Agency Tenure Management Q2

Placements as at
30/09/2017 (Matrix)

12

P
age 62



TOTAL HEADCOUNT

30/09/2017
3,193

01/04/2017
3,291

Decrease of  
98 people
(-3.06%)

01/04/2017
2,287

TOTAL FULL TIME EQUIVALENT

Decrease of 
42 FTE

(-1.87%)

30/09/2017
2,245

QUARTER 2 2017/18 DASHBOARD
HEADCOUNT AND FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) - SCHOOLS

3,193 2,245

HEADCOUNT AND FTE - 12 MONTH TREND

3291 3287 3286 3288 3287 3289 3277 3278 3277 3217 3213 3193

2314 2313 2314 2287 2287 2287 2287 2281 2280 2260 2257 2245

2000

2500

3000

3500

Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17

Headcount

FTE

13

P
age 63



TOTAL HEADCOUNT

30/09/2017
1,375

01/04/2017
1,390

Decrease of  
15 people
(-1.09%)

01/04/2016
1,271

TOTAL FULL TIME EQUIVALENT

Decrease of  
22 FTE

(-1.76%)

30/09/2017
1,249

QUARTER 2 2017/17 DASHBOARD
HEADCOUNT AND FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) - SCHOOLS (TEACHING)

1,375 1,249

HEADCOUNT AND FTE - 12 MONTH TREND

1382 1385 1387 1391 1392 1393 1390 1386 1385 1376 1373 1375

1266 1270 1272 1278 1276 1277 1271 1267 1265 1253 1250 1249

1200

1250

1300

1350

1400

1450

1500

Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17

Headcount

FTE

14

P
age 64



TOTAL HEADCOUNT

30/09/2017
1,892

01/04/2017
1,901

Decrease of  
83 people
(-4.57%)

01/04/2017
1,016

TOTAL FULL TIME EQUIVALENT

Decrease of  
20 FTE

(-1.97%)

30/09/2017
996

QUARTER 2 2017/18 DASHBOARD
HEADCOUNT AND FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) - SCHOOLS (NON-TEACHING)

1,818 996

HEADCOUNT AND FTE - 12 MONTH TREND

1909 1902 1899 1897 1895 1897 1887 1892 1892 1841 1840 1818

1048 1043 1042 1009 1011 1014 1016 1014 1015 1007 1007 996
900

1100

1300

1500

1700

1900

2100

Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17

Headcount

FTE

15

P
age 65



QUARTER 2 2017/18 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - SCHOOLS

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

16 - 24 25 - 34 35 - 44 45 - 49 50 - 54 55 - 59 60 - 64 65 - 69 70 - 74 75 and
Over

110

591

836

517 503

361

206

43 22 4

16

P
age 66



QUARTER 2 2017/18 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - SCHOOLS (TEACHING)

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

16 - 24 25 - 34 35 - 44 45 - 49 50 - 54 55 - 59 60 - 64 65 - 69 70 - 74 75 and
Over

45

399

469

183

140

101

35
2 1 0

17

P
age 67



QUARTER 2 2017/18 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - SCHOOLS (NON-TEACHING)

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

16 - 24 25 - 34 35 - 44 45 - 49 50 - 54 55 - 59 60 - 64 65 - 69 70 - 74 75 and
Over

65

192

367

334

363

260

171

41
21

4

18

P
age 68



DAYS LOST PER FTE AT 30/09/17

30/09/2017
1.07

30/09/2016
1.15

Improvement of 0.08 

QUARTER 2 2017/18 DASHBOARD
ATTENDANCE - SCHOOLS

1.07

TOP 4 REASONS
1. INFECTIONS
2.  STOMACH, LIVER, VOMITING
3.  STRESS, DEPRESSION, ANIEXTY
4.  MUSCULOSKELETAL

FTE DAYS LOST BY SCHOOL TYPE

1.09 0.95

1.95

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

Primary Schools Secondary
Schools

Special Schools

School Type Days Lost

Target FTE (Days Lost)

19

P
age 69



DAYS LOST PER FTE AT 30/09/17

30/09/2017
0.74

30/09/2016
0.85

Improvement 0.11

QUARTER 2 2017/18 DASHBOARD
ATTENDANCE - SCHOOLS (TEACHING)

0.74

TOP 4 REASONS
1. STOMACH, LIVER, VOMITING
2.  STRESS, DEPRESSION, ANXIETY
3.  INFECTIONS
4.  MUSCULOSKELETAL

FTE DAYS LOST BY SCHOOL TYPE

0.72 0.74

1.44

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

Primary Schools Secondary
Schools

Special Schools

School Type Days Lost

Target FTE (Days Lost)

20

P
age 70



DAYS LOST PER FTE AT 30/09/17

30/09/2017
1.49

30/09/2016
1.53

Improvement of 0.04 

QUARTER 2 2017/18 DASHBOARD
ATTENDANCE - SCHOOLS (NON-TEACHING)

1.49

TOP 4 REASONS
1. INFECTIONS
2.  STOMACH, LIVER, VOMITING
3.  MUSCULOSKELETAL
4.  STRESS, DEPRESSION, ANXIETY

FTE DAYS LOST BY SCHOOL TYPE

1.47 1.35

2.14

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

Primary Schools Secondary
Schools

Special Schools

School Type Days Lost

Target FTE (Days Lost)

21

P
age 71



LEAVERS - Q2 LEAVERS - 2017/18

QUARTER 2 2017/18 DASHBOARD
TURNOVER AND STABILITY - SCHOOLS

204 259

0

50

100

150

0 0 1 0 1
20

102

40

9 4
20

1 3 3

LEAVER REASON - Q2

22

P
age 72



LEAVERS - Q2 LEAVERS - 2017/18

QUARTER 2 2017/18 DASHBOARD
TURNOVER AND STABILITY - SCHOOLS (TEACHING)

110 125

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

0 0 0 0 0
11

51

16
6

18

4 1 3 0

LEAVER REASON - Q2

23

P
age 73



LEAVERS - Q2 LEAVERS - 2017/18

QUARTER 2 2017/18 DASHBOARD
TURNOVER AND STABILITY - SCHOOLS (NON-TEACHING)

94 134

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70

0 0 1 1 0
9

51

24

3 2 0 3

LEAVER REASON - Q2

24

P
age 74



QUARTER 2 2017/18 DASHBOARD
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY - SCHOOLS

84.84%

15.16%

Female

Male

GENDER BREAKDOWN (%)

MALE
484

(15.16%)

FEMALE
2,709
(84.84%)

GENDER BREAKDOWN

8

1662
1521

2 BME

White

Not Stated

Prefer Not To
Say

ETHNICITY
ETHNICITY BREAKDOWN (%)

BME - 8

WHITE - 1,662

NOT STATED - 1,521

1
3 1

679

2,473

2 34 Bisexual - 1

Gay Man - 3

Gay Woman/Lesbian - 1

Heterosexual/Straight - 679

Not Stated - 2,473

Other - 2

Prefer Not To Say - 34

SEXUAL ORIENTATION

PREFER NOT TO 
SAY - 2

25

P
age 75



QUARTER 2 2016/17 DASHBOARD
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY - SCHOOLS (TEACHING)

75.46%

24.54%
Female

Male

GENDER BREAKDOWN (%)

MALE
336

(24.54%)

FEMALE
1,033
(75.46%)

GENDER BREAKDOWN

2

697
670

0

BME

White

Not Stated

Prefer Not To Say

ETHNICITY
ETHNICITY BREAKDOWN (%)BME - 2

WHITE - 697

NOT STATED - 670

2

261

1,092

1
13 Gay Man - 2

Heterosexual/Straight - 261

Not Stated - 1,092

Other - 1

Prefer Not To Say - 13

SEXUAL ORIENTATION

PREFER NOT 

26

P
age 76



QUARTER 2 2017/18 DASHBOARD
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY - SCHOOLS (NON-TEACHING)

91.89%

8.11%

Female

Male

GENDER BREAKDOWN (%)

MALE
148
(8.11%)

FEMALE
1,676
(91.89%)

GENDER BREAKDOWN

6

965

2

851

BME

White

Prefer Not To Say

Not Stated

ETHNICITY
ETHNICITY BREAKDOWN (%)

BME - 6
WHITE - 965

NOT STATED - 851

1
1 1

418

1,381

1 21 Bisexual - 1

Gay Man - 1

Gay Woman/Lesbian - 1

Heterosexual/Straight - 418

Not Stated - 1,381

Other - 1

Prefer Not To Say - 21

SEXUAL ORIENTATION

PREFER NOT TO 
SAY - 2

27

P
age 77



T
his page is intentionally left blank



CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Thursday, 14 December 2017

Report Subject Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 7)

Cabinet Member Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance

Report Author Corporate Finance Manager

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the Revenue Budget 
Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 7) Report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the committee considers and comments on the Revenue Budget 
Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 7) Report. Any specific matters for attention will 
be noted and reported verbally to the Cabinet when it considers the report.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING POSITION 
2017/18 (MONTH 7)

1.01 The Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 7) Report will be 
presented to Cabinet on Tuesday 19 December 2017. A copy of the report 
is attached as Appendix A to this report.

Page 79

Agenda Item 6



2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 As set out in Appendix A; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 7). 

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 None required.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 As set out in Appendix A; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 7).

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix A; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 7).

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 None required.

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson, Finance Manager
Telephone: 01352 702287
E-mail: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 (1) Revenue: a term used to describe the day to day costs of running 
Council services and income deriving from those services.  It also includes 
charges for the repayment of debt, including interest, and may include direct 
financing of capital expenditure.

7.02 (2) Budget: a statement expressing the Council’s policies and service levels 
in financial terms for a particular financial year.  In its broadest sense it 
includes both the revenue budget and capital programme and any 
authorised amendments to them.

Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Thursday  14 December, 2017

Report Subject Forward Work Programme

Cabinet Member Not applicable

Report Author Democratic Services Manager

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine the 
Forward Work programme of the Committee of which they are Members.  By 
reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme Members are able to 
ensure it is Member-led and includes the right issues.  A copy of the Forward Work 
Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration which has been 
updated following the last meeting.

The Committee is asked to consider, and amend where necessary, the Forward 
Work Programme for the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

RECOMMENDATION

1 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme and 
approve/amend as necessary.

2 That the Democratic Services Manager, in consultation with the Chair and 
Vice-Chair of the Committee be authorised to vary the Forward Work 
Programme between meetings, as the need arises. 

Page 105

Agenda Item 7



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.01 Items feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number 
of sources.  Members can suggest topics for review by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can 
be referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council 
or Chief Officers.  Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet 
Work Programme and the Improvement Plan.

1.02 In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of 
significance’ to be applied.  This can be achieved by asking a range of 
questions as follows:

1. Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
2. Is it an area of major change or risk?
3. Are there issues of concern in performance?
4. Is there new Government guidance of legislation?
5. Is it prompted by the work carried out by Regulators/Internal Audit?

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 None as a result of this report.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 None as a result of this report.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1 – Draft Forward Work Programme

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 None.

Contact Officer: Robert Robins
Democratic Services Manager

Telephone: 01352 702320
E-mail: robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 106

mailto:robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk


7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of 
the Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 
2009 to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 2017/18

Page 1 of 2

DATE ISSUE O&S FOCUS / PURPOSE REPORT FROM 

Thursday 18th 
January 2018
10.00 a.m.

Workforce Information Report – 
Quarter 2 2017/18

Annual Review of Appraisals

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017 / 18

Forward Work Programme

Monitoring: to provide Members with an update for the 
second quarter for 2017/18

to provide the committee with the results of the Annual 
Review of Appraisals

Monthly Monitoring

Approval & Development

Sharon Carney /
Andy Adams

Sharon Carney

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins

Late January Budget Consultation Meeting 
(All Members)

To review, scrutinise and comment on the Budget  proposals

Thursday 15th 
February 2018
10.00 a.m.

Workforce Information Report – 
Quarter 3 2017/18

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017 / 18

Forward Work Programme

Monitoring and an update for the third quarter for 2017/18.

Monthly Monitoring 

Approval & Development

Sharon Carney /
Andy Adams

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins

Thursday 15th 
March 2018
10.00 a.m.

Quarter 3 Council Plan 2017/18 
Monitoring Report 

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017 / 18

That the Committee is invited to consider the Quarter 3 
Council Plan Monitoring Reports, highlight and monitor poor 
performance and feedback details of any challenge to the 
Cabinet.

Monthly Monitoring

Karen Armstrong

Sara Dulson

P
age 109



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 2017/18

Page 2 of 2

The previous Corporate Resources O&SC had resolved at its January 2017 meeting to invite Ms Alwen Williams, the Wales director of BT 
to attend a meeting and provide an update on the provision of broadband in the County. Ms Williams had previously attended a meeting of 
the committee in April 2016. 

Forward Work Programme Approval & Development Robert Robins

Thursday 19th 
April 2018
10.00 am

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017 / 18

Forward work programme

Monthly Monitoring

Approval and development

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins

P
age 110


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Flintshire Community Endowment fund - Annual Report
	Appendix 1 Impact report
	Appendix 2 Investment strategy

	5 Workforce Information Report – Quarter 2
	Enc. 1 for Workforce Information Report – Quarter 2
	Dashboard - Resource Management_Agency - Q2
	Dashboard_Workforce Information Q2 17-18
	Dashboard - Turnover and Stability Q2 - NON-SCHOOLS
	Dashboard_Workforce Information Q2 17-18
	Dashboard Cover Sheet Q2 -  FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
	Dashboard - TABLE OF CONTENTS 1
	Dashboard - TABLE OF CONTENTS 2
	Dashboard - Total Figures (Schools and Non-Schools) - Q2
	Dashboard - Headcount and FTE Q2 - NON-SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q2 - NON SCHOOLS PART 1
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q2 - NON SCHOOLS PART 2
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q2 - NON SCHOOLS PART 3
	Dashboard - Attendance Q2 - NON SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Equality and Diversity - Q2 - NON-SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Headcount and FTE Q2 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Headcount and FTE Q2 - SCHOOLS - TEACHING
	Dashboard - Headcount and FTE Q2 - SCHOOLS - NON TEACHING
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q2 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q2 - SCHOOLS - TEACHING
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q2 - SCHOOLS - NON TEACHING
	Dashboard - Attendance Q2 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Attendance Q2 - SCHOOLS TEACHING
	Dashboard - Attendance Q2 - SCHOOLS NON TEACHING
	Dashboard - Turnover and Stability Q2 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Turnover and Stability Q2 - SCHOOLS TEACHING
	Dashboard - Turnover and Stability Q2 - SCHOOLS NON TEACHING
	Dashboard - Equality and Diversity - Q2 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Equality and Diversity - Q2 - SCHOOLS TEACHING
	Dashboard - Equality and Diversity - Q2 - SCHOOLS NON TEACHING




	6 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 7)
	Enc. 1 - Cabinet report

	7 Forward Work Programme
	Enc. 1 for Forward Work Programme (Corporate Resources)




